
Washington Central Unified Union School District 

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to 
their local and global communities. 

1130 Gallison Hill Road 
Montpelier, VT  05602  
Phone (802) 229-0553 
Fax (802) 229-2761 

Washington Central Unified Union School District 
Board Meeting Agenda  

U-32 Gallison Hill Rd. Montpelier, VT  

8.11.21 6:00 PM – 9:00 PM 
 

 
 

1. Call to Order 3 minutes 

2. Welcome 15 minutes 
2.1. Reception of Guests
2.2. Public Comments –Time limit strictly enforced, see note
2.3. Agenda Revisions

3. Board Operations (Discussion/Action)  55 minutes 
3.1. New Board Members 20 minutes 

3.1.1. Executive Session- Appoint members from the  towns of   Middlesex, Worcester, and Calais 
(Discussion/Action) 

3.2. Notice of Open Meeting Law Violation Public Response – pg. 3 10 minutes 
3.3. U-32 Student Dismissal Time – 10 minutes 

Community/Student Engagement Plan: September 1, 2021 6:00 PM 
3.4. Meeting Schedules for FY 21-22 5 minutes 
3.5. Board Retreat Date/Planning   10 minutes 

4. Reports (Discussion/Action) 45 minutes 
4.1. Student Reports 5 minutes 
4.2. Superintendent 15 minutes 

4.2.1.  COVID-19 Update 
4.2.2.  Plans for the beginning  of the school year                 5 minutes 

4.3. ESSER Funds “Recovery” Plan           10 minutes 
4.4. Central Vermont Career Center Governance Study Committee Update – pg. 7  10 minutes 

5. Finance Committee(Discussion/Action) 35 minutes 
5.1. Celebrations and Accomplishments – pg. 15 5 minutes 
5.2. End of Year Fund Balance Report  - pg. 17 10 minutes 
5.3. Construction/Capitol Projects Update – pg. 31 10 minutes 
5.4. ESSER III Update and Reserve Fund Balance – pg. 32 5 minutes 
5.5. VSBA Dues – pg. 34 5 minutes 

Virtual Meeting Information: 

https://tinyurl.com/4836h4cn 
Meeting ID: 816 1769 7413 

Password: 463724 
Dial by Your Location: 1- 929- 205- 6099 

Berlin East Montpelier Calais 

Middlesex Worcester 

U- 32 

1

https://tinyurl.com/4836h4cn


6. 10 minutes Consent Agenda (Action)
6.1. Approve Minutes of 6.23.21 and  7.26.21 - pg. 38
6.2. Approve Board Orders

7. Personnel (Action) 10 minutes 
7.1. Approve New Teachers, Resignations, Retirements, Leave of Absence and Changes in FTE –
pg. 48

8. Executive Session – Student Matter 10 minutes 

9. Future Agenda Items
9.1. WCUUSD Name
9.2. Assessment Needs for Building Bright Futures
9.3. Diversifying Educator Work Force
9.4. Net Metering Proposal
9.5. Strategic Planning
9.6. Superintendent Report for Curriculum Review Process
9.7. Exploration of Financial Reports as discussed
9.8. Discussion of BLM, climate check-ins(regarding worries of prejudice and bias in buildings)
9.9. Transportation Committee
9.10. Mode of future meetings (remote/in person)
9.11.  Coalition for Vermont Student Equity Request for Funding

10. Board Reflection

11. Public Comments 10 minutes 

12. Adjourn

Note: To ensure the board has time to conduct its business, the board will adhere to a strict 1.5-minute
public comment time limit per person. Microphones will be muted when time is up. If there is not
enough time on the agenda for all members of the public wishing to comment at the beginning of the
meeting, there is additional public comment time at the end of the meeting.

WCUUSD Board Norms - Adopted November 18, 2020 

• Public input –Notify the community about public forums and opportunities for public comment at
board meetings.

• Community involvement during regular meetings of the board – Every meeting will include at
least one opportunity for public comment. Public comment is an opportunity for board members to
listen and ask clarifying questions. If a board member feels a concern raised in public comment
warrants further board discussion, they may request that the issue be added to a future agenda.

• Community dialogue – The board may periodically schedule community forums that allow for
dialogue, questions and answers from the board or the district leadership team.

• Stay on time – Start and end on time. The chair may appoint a time-keeper.
• All voices will be heard – Every board member gets a chance to speak. Some topics warrant having

each board member speak in turn to ensure full representation.
• Reflection –To allow time for reflection, the chair and agenda steering committee will plan time for

complex or contentious issues to be discussed at more than one meeting before the board votes,
except where a decision is urgent.

• Announcements in reports – Announcements from the administration will appear in the reports and
not as discussion items.

• Role of the board – At the end of each board meeting reflect on whether the board remained
focused on its policy-making and oversight role during the meeting, rather than operational details
that are the responsibility of leadership team.

• Respect each other – Listen, allow others to be heard, share concerns, assume positive intentions,
be present, celebrate successes.

2



3



--------- Forwarded message --------- 
From: Flor Diaz-Smith <fdiazsmith@u32.org> 
Date: Fri, Jul 30, 2021 at 12:29 PM 
Subject: Re: Change to student school day/response to notice of violation of open 
meeting law 
To: Sorsha Anderson <sorsha.anderson@gmail.com> 
Cc: WCUUSD School Board <wcuusdsb@u32.org>, Jennifer Miller-Arsenault 
<jmillerarsenault@u32.org> 

Dear Sorsha, 

Thank you for your July 29 email outlining your legal analysis about the Board’s 
obligations.  I appreciate it.  The Board will meet on August 11 to consider the 
“Notice of Violation” you sent on July 21, and will respond publicly 
thereafter.  You are correct that the statute, 1 VSA § 314(b)(2), calls for the 
Board to respond publicly to an alleged violation of the Open Meeting Law within 
10 days.  While the Board’s formal response in this case will take longer than 10 
days, I do not believe the Board is in material violation of the law.  That is so 
because, on July 28, within the 10-day period, I informed you by email that the 
Board’s counsel has advised that the Board’s actions were not in violation of the 
Open Meeting Law, for the reasons outlined in my email.  Thus, you have been 
provided with a timely, substantive denial of the alleged violation.  As to the 
failure of the Board as a whole to provide a public response within 10 days, the 
consequence for that is set forth in section 314(b)(3): it “shall be treated as a 
denial of the violation for purposes of enforcement of the requirements” of the 
Open Meeting Law.  And of course, that consequence is consistent with the 
substantive response in my July 28 email. 

In any event, I do hope you understand the sentiments I expressed in my prior 
email – that we should have engaged in better communication with the school 
community about the proposal to alter the school day schedule and its 
associated costs, and that we are committed to doing better. 

Thank you for your commitment to all our kids and all our schools. 

Respectfully, 

Flor 

4

mailto:fdiazsmith@u32.org
mailto:sorsha.anderson@gmail.com
mailto:wcuusdsb@u32.org
mailto:jmillerarsenault@u32.org


On Thu, Jul 29, 2021 at 10:47 AM Sorsha Anderson <sorsha.anderson@gmail.com> 
wrote: 
Hi Flor, 

I believe this response is insufficient to answer the open meeting law violation 
notice.  The statute, included below, requires a public response from the public body, 
not just legal counsel weighing in.  I would like a public response, which I understand 
would require a meeting and vote, on whether the board as a whole agrees or disagrees 
with the violation notice.  Specifically, does the board agree with legal counsel that the 
agenda item 'school time proposal' was clear enough to alert the public that action 
concerning transportation changes and increased spending would be considered during 
the meeting?  The 10-day response to the original notice is up tomorrow, however, I 
would expect a public response by Tuesday, August 3, 2021 before considering this a 
failure to respond. 

Sorsha Anderson 
Middlesex, VT 

1 V.S.A. § 314. Penalty and enforcement 

*** 

(2) Upon receipt of the written notice of alleged violation, the public 
body shall respond publicly to the alleged violation within 10 calendar days by: 

(A) acknowledging the violation of this subchapter and stating an intent 
to cure the violation within 14 calendar days; or 

(B) stating that the public body has determined that no violation has 
occurred and that no cure is necessary. 

On Wed, Jul 28, 2021 at 2:42 PM Flor Diaz-Smith <fdiazsmith@u32.org> wrote: 

Sorsha, 

I consulted with our legal counsel and I am confident that we warned this meeting 
properly and the actions taken on the June 23rd meeting are all in compliance with 
Open Meeting Law. 
I am attaching the Packet that went out, please see the bold orange squares that 
respond to the questions you have asked. 

-The meeting was properly warned. 
-The date and time plus the physical location and the virtual location are correct.-All of 
the information regarding the Discussion/Action is on page 172 of the 

5

mailto:sorsha.anderson@gmail.com
mailto:fdiazsmith@u32.org


document.  Please let me know if you have any further questions on the Open Meeting 
Notice violation letter you shared. 

Now in regards to the change and how this change was communicated, you are 
right.  We should have reached out sooner to families but especially students so that 
they understood and had a voice on the value of the extended time at school.  I agree 
with you that we can do better and we are working on doing better in how we 
communicate and engage with all the stakeholders.   

The change to the student school day from 8:00-2:35 to 8:00- 2:55. The current teacher 
workday will not change; it will remain 7:45-3:15. This change falls within the current 
collective bargaining agreement for the teacher day and allows us the opportunity to 
add instructional time.     

The change allows us to provide better opportunities for all kids. It gives the 
administrators the ability to expand learning time to improve core academics or 
enrichment efforts.  It is hard for schools to be everything for everyone, at the same time 
this is an equity issue.  Expanding the school day helps all students and can help us 
reduce the achievement gaps.  Many students that struggle or come from 
disadvantaged families have a lot to gain from spending more time at school. Many 
students that exceed expectations also have a lot to gain from spending more time at 
school.  Finally it brings parity between all our teachers across the district.  They will all 
be teaching the same amount of time. 

We are not done. This is just the first step and as we see how this proposal that was 
approved unfolds through next year.   We will benefit from students and community 
input starting now as we will need students and community members committed to 
making the extended days a success.   

I know that both the U32 administrators and the Board took a risk in bringing a 
proposal up and acting quickly on it.  But as we continue to rise up together from this 
global pandemic we know that we have no time to lose in doing all we can to support 
the best outcomes for all kids. 

The August 11th School Board Meeting will include this topic and we will discuss plans 
to have a community engagement forum on September 1st around this topic and 
others.  That will allow us to better engage with community members and hear your 
input.   

Respectfully, 

Flor 

Flor Diaz Smith 
Washington Central Unified Union School District, Chair VSBA Vice President /Central 
Vermont Region Representative; Building Bright Futures State Advisory Council 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



Washington	Central	Unified	Union	School	District 

WCUUSD	exists	to	nurture	and	inspire	in	all	students	the	passion,	creativity	and	power	to	contribute	to	
their	local	and	global	communities.	

1130 Gallison Hill Road 
Montpelier, VT  05602  Bryan Olkowski 
Phone (802) 229-0553 Superintendent     
Fax (802) 229-2761 

TO:		 	WCUUSD	School	Board	
FROM:		Susanne	D.	Gann,	WCUUSD	Business	Administrator	
RE:			 		Celebrations	and	Accomplishments	
DATE:			August	4,	2021	

CELEBRATIONS	
Lori Bibeau retired from the school district on July 1, 2021 following 27 years of service.  
Lori has been retained by the district as a Mentor/Fiscal Advisor for the new Business 
Administrator, Susanne Gann, for the upcoming fiscal year, as scheduled by the Business 
Administrator.  We want to thank Lori for her flexibility and willingness to support the 
district with this transition. 

ACCOMPLISHMENTS	
The finance staff completed the year-end procedures in NEMRC on June 30, 2021 this year.  
An enormous amount of work and effort went into completing this on such a quick 
timetable.  Thank you to Lori, Virginia, Matt, Penny, Renee, Shannon and all the school 
building staff that helped accomplish this. 

The school district financials for FY 20-21 were audited August 2 – 6, 2021 by RHR Smith & 
Company CPA’s.  Maintaining clean financial data throughout the year makes this process 
more manageable at the end of the year.  No matter how clean the data is, numerous 
reconciliations, reports and supporting documentation are required to complete an audit.  
Thank you to Lori, Virginia, Matt, Penny and Shannon for their efforts in facilitating an 
incredibly smooth audit.  A special thank you to Matt for taking the lead with audit 
preparation this year. 

A common challenge at year end is a long list of competing priorities, limited staff and a 
desperate need for people to take time off.  In addition to this, Lori’s retirement has created 
an additional need for training, team development and development of common language 
and communication methods.  Everyone in the Central Office has been extremely 
welcoming to me and have provided me with support and assistance during this transition.  
I was able to receive training with Lori the last two weeks of June.  While completing the 
year-end close procedures, we were able to do an overview of fiscal timelines, Finance 
Committee meetings and the budget process.  I was briefed on upcoming projects including 

Berlin East Montpelier Calais 

Middlesex Worcester 

U- 32 

15



the Transportation Bid, ESSER III grant, Capital Budgets and Plans, the Financial Software 
conversion and other initiatives.  I look forward to working with the Central Office Team, 
Leadership Team, Finance Committee and School Board as we move into August. 

16



Washington	Central	Unified	Union	School	District 

WCUUSD	exists	to	nurture	and	inspire	in	all	students	the	passion,	creativity	and	power	to	contribute	to	
their	local	and	global	communities.	

1130 Gallison Hill Road 
Montpelier, VT  05602  Bryan Olkowski 
Phone (802) 229-0553 Superintendent     
Fax (802) 229-2761 

TO:		 	WCUUSD	School	Board	
FROM:		Susanne	Gann,	WCUUSD	Business	Administrator	

		Lori	Bibeau,	WCUUSD	Business	Administrator	(Retired)	
RE:			 		Financial	Update	for	Fiscal	Year	20‐21‐Year	End	Report	
DATE:			August	4,	2021	

This report is the final report for Fiscal Year 20-21.  Due to my retirement, the Fiscal Staff 
broke our prior record for closing the books.  On June 30, 2021, the financial system was 
closed for the year and the new Fiscal Year 21-22 was opened and ready for business.  This 
feat took a considerable amount of planning and team work.   

Special thanks to the Fiscal Staff:  Virginia Breer, Matt Kittredge, Penny Sanville, Renee 
Bates, Shannon McGinley and Susanne Gann.  Also thanks to the Washington Central 
Leadership Team, School Administrative Assistants, Heather Magoon and Kim Bolduc who 
helped ensure their work was completed so this accelerated close could take place. 

This financial report reflects the final information currently being audited by RHR Smith.  
In June, a single audit for the grants was completed and there were no audit findings.  Here 
is the final grant information:	

ESSER	UPDATE	
Washington Central Unified Union School District (WCUUSD) received approval for ESSER I 
& ESSER II grants which will be spent by June 30, 2021. Here is a summary of the ESSER 
grant information as of today: 

1. ESSER I Grant $243,331
2. ESSER II Grant $1,108,477 up from the original amount of $923,131
3. ESSER III allocation is $2,480,120.

a. The deadline to spend this award is September 30, 2024.
b. We have completed the initial work to secure the grant by submitting the

Recovery/Moving Forward Plan and the initial application.
c. We are awaiting guidance on the allowable uses for ESSER III grant funds.

This report describes the use of the ESSER funds and how they impact the projected fund 
balance.   

Berlin East Montpelier Calais 

Middlesex Worcester 

U- 32 

17



ESSER	I	$243,331	

Washington Central UUSD received approval to spend $243,331 as follows: 
 Remote Instruction $99,991
 Health Services-Additional Nurse time and COVID-19 Coordinator $142,675
 Independent Schools share $665

ESSER	II	$1,108,477	
Washington Central UUSD received approval to spend $1,108,477 as follows: 

 Remote Instruction $512,362
 LEA staffing needed to manage the COVID-19 response $421,256	was	$235,910
 Costs associated with increased staff necessitated by the COVID-19 response and

recovery $174,859.

The Town Meeting Warning-Article 7 was approved by voters.  This article authorizes 
the School Board to control and direct the use of Fund Balance for operations.  By 
utilizing ESSER I & ESSER II funds for budgeted items, this creates an increase in the 
Operating Fund Balance.  This will provide less restrictions and deadlines than the 
ESSER II grant.  It will also provide an opportunity for the School District to utilize funds 
for strategic planning, recommendations from the curriculum management review etc. 
as we work to develop and implement district improvement initiatives. 

Operating	Fund	Balance	Update	
 The operating fund balance is projected to increase since the June report.  The

primary reasons are:  the use of ESSER Grants to pay staffing costs, unspent 
budgeted funds due to the pandemic and the decline in enrollment of Special 
Education students. 

o The Fund Balance is projected to be $2,666,659.
o After the reduction of $596,203 in current reservations, the available

operating fund balance is $2,070,456.  This is $1,361,846 over the 2% target.

 Using the latest information available, here is a list of the changes since June that are
included in the June projections:

o At the June 23rd meeting, the School Board authorized the use of fund balance
as follows:
 Additional expense to transfer to the Capital Fund $1,000,000.
 Reservations for Fiscal Year 21-22:

 Additional expense for Paraeducators $31,368 less offsetting
revenues of $17,566 for a net amount of $13,802.

 Additional expense for Student Transportation Services to
extend the student day $121,000.

o Final transactions noted as June 2021 #2:
Revenue Changes:
 Miscellaneous & Interest Income $59,420

18



 Special Education Reimbursements($9,961)
Expense Changes: 
 The final purchasing and staffing costs for the year resulted in

additional savings of $244,525 
 Special Education Program $62,712 due to the decline in enrollment.

Capital	Funds	
When Washington Central Unified Union School District merged on July 1, 2019, the capital 
funds were restricted to the Separate entities.  These balances have been tracked in 
separate accounts until they are expended in full.  Here are the highlights for FY 20-21: 
Beginning	balances	of	July	1,	2020:	

 Berlin $451,588
 Calais $130,849
 East Montpelier $907,669
 Middlesex $72,995
 Worcester $234,448
 U32 $632,091
 Central Office $117,370
 WCUUSD $26,383

Total	Beginning	Balances	$2,573,393	

Revenues:	
 General Fund Transfer $706,522
 Additional Fund Transfer $1,500,000+$1,000,000=$2,500,000
 Interest Income and Miscellaneous Income $45,610

Total	Revenues	$3,252,526	

Expenses:	
NOTE:		The	Board	Approved	District	Funds	to	cover	the	project	costs	beyond	the	
beginning	balances:	

 Berlin $590,753
 Calais $135,717
 East Montpelier $1,634
 Middlesex $173,421
 Worcester $313,208
 U32 $660,985
 Central Office $21,829
 WCUUSD $110,995

Total	Expenses	$2,008,542	

Projected	ending	balances	of	June	30,	2021:	
 Berlin $0
 Calais $0
 East Montpelier $906,035

19



 Middlesex $0
 Worcester $0
 U32 $0
 Central Office $95,541
 WCUUSD $2,815,801

Total	Projected	Ending	Balances	$3,817,377	

Food	Service	Programs	
Due to the pandemic from March 2020 and for most of this fiscal year, the Food Service 
Programs have covered the unanticipated expenses by funding from grants.  The grants 
include: LEA-Cares Relief Act, CRF-Summer Food Service and CRF-Food Service Equipment.  
The programs have shifted to universal free meals which requires specific meal planning to 
comply with the necessary meal components to receive Federal Reimbursement. 

Although universal free meals have been available, many families are not participating this 
year. Here is a summary of the students eating by building using the information through 
June 30, 2021: 

Breakfast	 	 Lunch	
Berlin  34% 72% 
Calais  30% 49% 
East Montpelier 34% 51% 
Rumney 36% 56% 
Doty  32% 57% 
U32    7% 24% 

The attached reports provide a District comparison and historical trends for each program.  
The Agency of Education Child Nutrition Program has not provided the final commodities 
amount yet.  The report will be updated when the information is available.  This entry does 
not impact fund balance as the same amount will be recorded as revenue and expense for 
each school. 

Washington Central Unified Union School District recently received notification from the 
Vermont Agency of Education Child Nutrition Program that the net cash resources for the 
Food Service Programs exceeded the limits established by Vermont law.  The maximum 
amount by law for Fiscal Year 19-20 was $156,447 and Washington Central UUSD ended 
the year with $214,208.  As you may recall the Cares Relief Food Service allocations 
resulted in Washington Central reopening the financial records for Fiscal Year 19-20.  In 
reviewing the situation, the voter approved transfer of $149,115 from the operating budget 
resulted in the excess amount for FY 19-20.   

To respond to the Agency’s finding, we received approval to not transfer this year’s budget 
amount of $149,115.  Without the transfer, the Food Service Fund Balance at June 30, 2021 
is $126,496 which is below the state formula.   

20



Community	Connections	
The Community Connections program closed the year with a Fund Balance of $80,834.  
This is due to the new grant support, along with the support of the Cares Relief Grant this 
year. At this time, we are projecting the program will break even using the Fund Balance 
for FY 21-22.  

Self‐Funded	Accounts‐Dental	Insurance	and	Health	Reimbursement/Section	
125(Medical	Spending/Dependent	Care)	

Here is the fiscal year-end balances for the Self-Funded Accounts: 
 Dental Insurance program $107,213.

 Health Reimbursement/Section 125 Medical Spending/Dependent Care Account
$645,262.

Other	Funds	

Special	Revenue	Funds	
The Special Revenue Accounts (Miscellaneous Grants) revenues and expenses totaled 
$3,093,241.  Please note:  This did not include the Cares Relief Grants, Efficiency Vermont 
Grants or Food Service Grants which were tracked in separate funds and crossed fiscal 
years. 

Permanent	Funds	
The Permanent Fund ended the fiscal year with a balance of $5,773. 

Trust	Funds	
The Trust Funds (Scholarship and Miscellaneous) ended the fiscal year with a balance of 
$82,276. 

Agency	Funds	
The Agency Funds (Student Activities) ended the fiscal year with a balance of $150,467. 

21



Washington Central Unified Union School District NOTE:  Fund Balance available to the School Board is the "After Audit

FUND BALANCE SUMMARY Beginning Balance". The Projected Ending Fund Balance is an estimate 

Fiscal Year 2020-2021 using the current information.  This amount becomes final after the

As of June 30 2021-PRE-AUDIT school year ends and the audit is completed.

KEY:  Increase (Decrease) to Fund Balance

GENERAL FUND (1)

Beginning Fund Balance-Reserved for Operations:
Month of Update

Reserved for Operations July  2020 $2,510,525

Total Beginning Fund Balance-Reserved for Operations(A) $2,510,525

Revenues Changes: BUDGET 2021 CHANGE PROJECTED 2021

Interest Income Sept 2020 -$53,780 * See Expenses Below

Miscellaneous Income-Rumney Outdoor Learning Sept & Nov 2020 $11,500 * See Expenses Below

Tuition Income(4 less Full-time students than budgeted) Oct 2020 -$82,608

Small Schools Grant Oct 2020 $28,866

Special Education Reimbursements Nov 2020 -$304,888 * See Expenses Below

Miscellaneous Income-Dental Transfer-Per Board Action December 16 Dec 2020 $125,000

Special Education Reimbursements Dec 2020 -$34,112 * See Expenses Below

Education Spending-Repurposed using CRF Feb 2021 -$836,152 * See Expenses Below

CARES RELIEF FUND-COVID Reimbursement-AOE Feb 2021 $2,147,353 * See Expenses Below

CARES RELIEF FUND-COVID Reimbursement-Efficiency Vermont Feb 2021 $815,699 * See Expenses Below

Special Education Reimbursements-Prior Year Final April 2021 $61,164

Special Education Reimbursements-Early Retirement April 2021 $41,653

Special Education Reimbursements April 2021 -$199,231 * See Expenses Below

Miscellaneous, Field Trip, Erate & Interest Income April 2021 -$73,703

Miscellaneous, Field Trip, Erate, Transportation Aid & Interest Income June 2021 -$11,004

Special Education Reimbursements June 2021 -$142,536 * See Expenses Below

Miscellaneous Reimbursements, Tuition and Interest Income June 2021#2 $59,420

Special Education Reimbursements June 2021#2 -$9,961 * See Expenses Below

TOTAL REVENUES(B) $35,430,502 $1,542,680 $36,973,182

Expense Changes: BUDGET 2021 CHANGE PROJECTED 2021

Interest Expense Sept 2020 $53,780 *See Revenues Above
Program Costs-Rumney Outdoor Learning Sept & Nov 2020 -$11,500 *See Revenues Above
School-wide Payroll Update-Unfilled Positions Oct 2020 $221,629

School-wide Payroll Update-Budgeted Position Charged to Grant Oct 2020 $37,340
School-wide Payroll Update-Health Insurance Savings Oct 2020 $74,365
School-wide Payroll Update-Staffing Turnover Savings Oct 2020 $77,227

Special Education Programs Nov 2020 $539,135 *See Revenues Above
Special Education Programs Nov 2020 $29,958 *See Revenues Above
School-wide Payroll Update-Updated for CRF eligible expenses Feb 2021 $254,593

Education Spending-Repurposed using CRF Feb 2021 $836,152 *See Revenues Above
CARES COVID Instructional, Support and Related Expenses-AOE Feb 2021 -$2,147,353 *See Revenues Above
CARES COVID Air quality, Isolation Rooms-Efficiency Vermont Feb 2021 -$815,699 *See Revenues Above
Transfer to Capital Fund- Per Board Action February 17 2021 April 2021 ‐$1,500,000

Early Retirement-Local Share-ESSER I partial share April 2021 -$197,517 Partial SPED reimbursement
Budget Savings School-wide Payroll-Incl ESSER I & II , Substitutes April 2021 $737,404
Budget Savings-Field trips, Travel, Professional Development April 2021 $154,070
Budget Savings-Athletics April 2021 $122,130
Budget Savings-Co-curricular April 2021 $46,292
Special Education Programs-Decline in Students April 2021 $304,953 *See Revenues Above
District-wide close down June 2021 $280,127
Special Education Programs-Decline in Students June 2021 $60,016 *See Revenues Above
Food Service Transfer-Per CNF June 2021 $149,115
District-wide close down-FINAL June 2021 #2 $244,525
Special Education Programs-Decline in Students June 2021#2 $62,712 *See Revenues Above
Transfer to Capital Fund- Per Board Action June 23 2021 June 2021#2 ‐$1,000,000

TOTAL EXPENSES(C) $35,430,502 -$1,386,546 $36,817,048

CURRENT YEAR OPERATIONS-REVENUE LESS EXPENSES (B-C)=D $156,134
BEGINNING BALANCE + CURRENT YEAR OPERATIONS(A+D)=E $2,666,659

Other board considerations for Fund Balance(F): 
Reserve for Budget Items-FY 21-22-Early Retirement ‐$145,019
Reserve for Budget Items-FY 22-23-Early Retirement ‐$145,019
Equity Services-WCFE-Equity Scholar in Residence-PER BOD action 17‐Mar‐21 ‐$79,184
Reserved for FY 21-22 paraeducators(2.28 FTE's) Exp $123,371 LessRev $31,192 19‐May‐21 ‐$92,179
Reserved for FY 21-22 paraeducators(.86 FTE) Exp $31,368 LessRev $17,566 23‐Jun‐21 ‐$13,802
Reserved for FY 21-22 Student Transportation Extended Day 23‐Jun‐21 ‐$121,000
Reserve for COVID-19 Coordinator and FT Nurses(2.0FTE)- Less Grants $0 ESSER III$190‐$200k

Reserve Strategic Plan & Curriculum Management Review-Amt TBD $0

Subtotal Board Considerations ‐$596,203

PROJECTED ENDING BALANCE-Reserved  For Operations(E+F)=G $2,070,456

Note:  Target Fund Balance at 2% of current year budget $708,610

Amount Available Beyond the 2% Target $1,361,846

Other Reserved Fund Balances:
Reserved for Technology Equipment $357,928
Reserved for Fiscal Software & Related Costs-Incl. Interest Income $309,000

Subtotal Reserved Items (G) $666,928

22



Washington Central Unified Union School District
FUND BALANCE SUMMARY As of June 30 2021-PRE-AUDIT

Fiscal Year 2020-2021
PERMANENT 

(Fund 5) TRUST(Fund 8) AGENCY(Fund 9)

SCHOLARSHIP/ Student Activities

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND(2)-GRANTS OTHER FUNDS MISCELLANEOUS MISCELLANEOUS  

Beginning Fund Balance $0 Beginning Fund Bal. /Deposits Payable $5,577 $83,009 $128,026
Projected Income $3,093,241
Projected  Expense -$3,093,241 Projected Surplus(Use) 196$  (733)$  22,441$            

Projected Available Funds $0 Projected Available Funds $5,773 $82,276 $150,467

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND(3)

Beginning Fund Balance:
Combined Totals BERLIN CALAIS

EAST 
MONTPELIER

MIDDLESEX WORCESTER U32 Central Office WCUUSD

Beginning Fund Balance(A) $2,573,393 $451,588 $130,849 $907,669 $72,995 $234,448 $632,091 $117,370 $26,383

Revenues:

Interfund Transfers $706,522 $139,165 $4,868 $0 $100,032 $78,760 $28,894 $0 $354,803

Additional Interfund Transfer Per Board Action February 17 2021 & June 23, 202 $2,500,000 $2,500,000

Interest Income & Miscellaneous Income $46,004 $0 $0 $0 $394 $0 $0 $0 $45,610

TOTAL REVENUES(B) $3,252,526 $139,165 $4,868 $0 $100,426 $78,760 $28,894 $0 $2,900,413

TOTAL FUND BALANCE & REVENUES(A+B)=C $5,825,919 $590,753 $135,717 $907,669 $173,421 $313,208 $660,985 $117,370 $2,926,796

Expenses: Combined Totals BERLIN CALAIS
EAST 

MONTPELIER
MIDDLESEX WORCESTER U32 Central Office WCUUSD

ACTUAL EXPENSES PAID TO DATE $2,008,542 $590,753 $135,717 $1,634 $173,421 $313,208 $660,985 $21,829 $110,995
ENCUMBERED PURCHASE ORDERS TO DATE $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENSES(C) $2,008,542 $590,753 $135,717 $1,634 $173,421 $313,208 $660,985 $21,829 $110,995

CURRENT CAPITAL PROJECT BALANCE AVAILABLE $3,817,377 $0 $0 $906,035 $0 $0 $0 $95,541 $2,815,801

ENTERPRISE FUNDS(Fund 6)

Fiscal Year 2020-2021
Total Fund 6 Food Services

Community 
Connections

Dental Program
Health 

Reimbursement/
MSA/DC

Beginning Fund Balance $1,072,090 $214,208 $27,809 $231,393 $598,680

Budget Support -$85,000 $0 $40,000 -$125,000 $0
Projected Surplus(Use) (27,285)$  (87,712)$            13,025$             $820 $46,582

CURRENT PROJECTED FUND BALANCE $959,805 $126,496 $80,834 $107,213 $645,262

Cannot Exceed $156,447

23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



Washington	Central	Unified	Union	School	District 

WCUUSD	exists	to	nurture	and	inspire	in	all	students	the	passion,	creativity	and	power	to	contribute	to	
their	local	and	global	communities.	

1130 Gallison Hill Road 
Montpelier, VT  05602  Bryan Olkowski 
Phone (802) 229-0553 Superintendent     
Fax (802) 229-2761 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: WCUUSD School Board  
FROM: Chris O’Brien, WCUUSD Director of Facilities  
DATE: 8/3/2021  
RE: Construction/Capital Projects Update 

After conferring with Bill Ford our Clerk of the Works, here is the WCUUSD 
Capital Project update as of 8/3/2021: 

1. Berlin storm water, Rumney Indoor Air Quality, and WCUUSD Central
Office Indoor Air Quality projects are scheduled to be substantially
complete by 8/16/2021 per the contracts.

2. Rumney gym floor is substantially complete at this time and is ready for
the opening of school.

3. Replacement of sidewalk at U-32 completed and ready for use on
8/2/2021.

4. U-32 storm water design and permitting is in process. Bidding is
expected by 2/2022 followed by construction summer of 2022.

5. Berlin parking and drive replacement. Phase 2 paving completed
7/30/2021.

At this time, all projects are expected to be completed within the board 
approved budgets. The board will receive a financial update in October once 
the work is completed and the final invoices are paid. 

Substantially complete means available for its intended use, but not 
necessarily 100% complete. There may be final billing, O&M manuals, 
balancing, and other close out items to complete. We will have the ability to 
operate the systems in manual until the controls are complete. 

Berlin East Montpelier Calais 

Middlesex Worcester 

U- 32 

31



Washington	Central	Unified	Union	School	District 

WCUUSD	exists	to	nurture	and	inspire	in	all	students	the	passion,	creativity	and	power	to	contribute	to	
their	local	and	global	communities.	

1130 Gallison Hill Road 
Montpelier, VT  05602  Bryan Olkowski 
Phone (802) 229-0553 Superintendent     
Fax (802) 229-2761 

TO:		 	WCUUSD	School	Board	
FROM:		Susanne	Gann,	WCUUSD	Business	Administrator	

		Lori	Bibeau,	WCUUSD	Fiscal	Advisor	
RE:			 		ESSER	III	&	Fund	Balance	Board	Actions	for	Staffing	
DATE:			August	4,	2021	

Recommendations	for	ESSER	III	&	Fund	Balance	for	consideration:	
The Washington Central UUSD ESSER III allocation is $2,480,120.   

a. The deadline to spend this award is September 30, 2024.
b. We have completed the initial work to secure the grant by submitting the

Recovery/Moving Forward Plan and the initial application.
c. We are awaiting guidance on the allowable uses for ESSER III grant funds.

At this time, we have not received final instructions for eligible expenses for the ESSER III 
grant. ESSER III is a multi-year grant ending on September 2024. There have been several 
items identified for this funding source if they are found eligible and the list continues to 
grow. However, the Agency of Education has informed schools this information is not 
expected until September.   

In June 2021, Lori Bibeau sent the following list to the agency for consideration and was 
told this list fits well within the ESSER allowable cost categories. 

Here	is	a	summary	of	the	list	of	items	to	date:	
CDC	Guidelines:  Nursing Time(Calais and Doty), COVID Coordinator, cleaning supplies 
and additional staffing for additional cleaning, Daycare and after school activities, school 
bus sanitation, furniture/supplies, administrative of leave and additional staff processing, 
fiscal time for grant processing. 
Recovery/Moving	Forward	Plan:  Tutors, Summer programs, after school coordinator 
and activities, compensatory services, remote learning, counselor time, recovery 
coordinator, recovery work teams. 
Curriculum	Management	Review:	Curriculum professional development, curriculum 
writing, Math and Literacy Specialists, Instructional Coaches, Improved instruction and 
student outcomes. 
Special	Education	Program	Review:	Consultant to complete program review, Act 173 
transition and identify staffing needs-TBD. 

Berlin East Montpelier Calais 

Middlesex Worcester 

U- 32 

32



Historical	Board	Actions:	
At the January 6, 2021 School Board meeting, the following positions were authorized for 
Fund Balance or Grant Funds for one year positions: 

 COVID 19 Coordinator(1.0 FTE)
 Full Time Nurses( Calais(.40 FTE) and Doty(.60FTE)
 At the time, the estimated cost was calculated at $190,004.
 There has been staffing changes due to turnover.
 The Board previously authorized $190,004 which should be enough to cover the

updated payroll projections for these positions.

In June 2021, the Washington Central Leadership Team met and identified the need for 
unbudgeted Counselor and intervention positions to support students.  The Board 
authorized the posting and hiring for the counselor positions at the June 23, 2021 School 
Board meeting.  We have calculated the estimated cost for filling these positions that were 
not included in the operating budget.  As most of the staffing appointments are included in 
this Board packet, we recommend the board also authorize the funding for the positions at 
the meeting on August 11, 2021. 

Recommended	New	Board	Actions:	

1) To reserve fund balance, subject to a reduction in grant funds, for the following one
year Counselor positions:

 U-32 1.0 FTE
 Calais .60 FTE
 Berlin-Estimate 1.0(to be filled)
 EMES .40 FTE
 Doty .20 FTE
 Rumney .20 FTE

Total Estimated Cost $365,000 

2) To reserve fund balance, subject to a reduction in grant funds, for the following one
year Math Interventionist position:
 Calais .50 FTE

Total Estimated Cost $51,000 

33



34



35



36



37



Washington Central Unified Union School District 

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to 
their local and global communities. 

1130 Gallison Hill Road 
Montpelier, VT  05602  Bryan Olkowski 
Phone (802) 229-0553 Superintendent     
Fax (802) 229-2761 

Washington Central Unified Union School District 
Board Meeting 

6.23.21 5:00-9:00 PM  

Board Members:   Flor Diaz-Smith, Lindy Johnson, Scott Thompson, Diane Nichols-Fleming, 
Kari Bradley, Jonas Eno-Van Fleet, Dorothy Naylor, Christopher McVeigh, Jill Olson, Jonathan 
Goddard, Stephen Looke, Vera Frazier 

Administrators: Superintendent Bryan Olkowski,  Human Resources Coordinator  Carla Messier, 
Principal Steven Dellinger Pate,  Interim Technology Director James Garrity, Principal Aaron 
Boynton, Principal Alicia Lyford, Principal Cat Fair, Principal Gillian Fuqua, Director of 
Curriculum, Assessment and Instruction Jennifer Miller-Arsenault, Associate Principal Jody 
Emerson, Special Education Coordinator Julia Pritchard, Director of Special Services, Kelly 
Bushey, Director of Student Services, Lisa LaPlante, Business Administrator Lori Bibeau, Director 
of Student Affairs Amy Molina 

Others/Public: ORCA Media, Amy Young, Ellen Dorsey, Madeleine Dougherty, Sonya Rhodes, 
Cathy G, Daniel Diddlemeyer, Danielle Laquerre, Erika, Erin Mooney, Kara Rosenberg, Karen 
Lieberman, Beatrice David , Mary Bove,  Michael Sherwin,  Nicole Schaeffer, Anne Carter, 
Danielle LaFleur Brooks, Jennifer Campbell, Kathryn Biggam, Susanne Gann, Krista Dy, Kristine 
Chartrand, Latisha, Laura Giammusso, Lisa Hanna, Lisa Wilson, Lori Potvin, Maggie, Matt Pelkey, 
McKaylyn Leclerc, Meg Allison, Natasha Eckart Baning, Talitha Landis-Marinello, Ursula Stanley, 
Virginia Breer, Abigail Brown, Allison Fayle, Amy Accles, Amy Koenigbauer, April Davis, 
Christine Fitch, Christine Hertz Hausman, Adam Rosen, Brian Albee, Caitlyn Usticke, David 
Lawrence, Jenn Ingersoll, Jennifer Campbell, Jennifer Donovan, Jess Barewicz, Justin, Kelly 
MacMartin, Kyle Landis-Marinello, Lauren Melkonian, Lina Aster,  Maggie Weiss, Shelley, 
Woden Teachout, Elsa Ingpen, Holly Lane, Jessica Kobb, Patrick Whelley, David Delcore, Hannah 
Brown  

1. Call to Order:  Flor Diaz Smith called the meeting to order at 5:02 p.m.
She noted that there will be a slight change in the agenda, as the board will elect a Vice Chair
before going into Executive Session, and she will need to leave shortly thereafter.
Scott Thompson moved to nominate Kari Bradley as Vice Chair.  Seconded by Chris
McVeigh, this motion carried unanimously.

2. Executive Session-Legal Matter, Negotiations, Superintendent Evaluation:
Lindy Johnson moved to go into Executive Session at 5:04 for the purpose of discussing Legal
Matters, Negotiations, and Superintendent Evaluation.  The beginning of the Executive
Session was for board members only.  Seconded by Scott Thompson, this motion carried
unanimously. Flor Diaz-Smith left the meeting at 5:05 p.m. The board came out of Executive
Session (6:00), and Kari Bradley facilitated the meeting, as Vice Chair, in Flor Diaz-Smith’s
absence.

Berlin East Montpelier Calais 

Middlesex Worcester 

U- 32 

38



 
 

Stephen Looke suggested that the board not take action regarding the Black Lives Matter request 
until providing opportunity for public comment. 
Kari Bradley stated that agenda item 4.2.1:  Black Lives Matter Flag Raising Request will be first 
on the agenda, as students are prepared to present at 6:00. 
 

3. Welcome 
3.1. Reception of Guests 
3.2. Public Comments: 

Kari Bradley asked for a reminder about parameters and expectations around public 
comments.  Jill Olson explained that the guidelines for public comment will be strictly followed 
tonight in order to keep this portion of the meeting to 15 minutes.  She invited those present to 
engage with the board in other ways, in addition to public comments at board meetings. 

• Ellen Dorsey, teacher and coach at WCUUSD, spoke about her hopes for the district going 
forward.  She urged the board to establish community forums to have necessary conversations. 

• Amy Young, teacher at Berlin, expressed concerns about technology policies.  She asked for 
more stakeholders to have input; she stated that the tech committee has not had input into these 
policies.  She celebrated the work from the last three days of curriculum camp at WCUUSD. 

• Anne Carter spoke about how she values collaboration in the district and asked the board to 
engage collaboratively regarding the curriculum review. 

• Danielle LaFleur Brooks spoke in favor of the BLM flag.  She reiterated the request to have 
public forums before making any decisions regarding the curriculum review. 

• Daniel Diddlemeyer spoke about access to the internet as an equity issue, and about the need to 
provide access to the internet, as an educational entity.   “Education is about access.” 

• Elsa Ingpen shared her concerns that the Superintendent had messaged parents encouraging 
them to come to this board meeting regarding the BLM flag.  She asked why the issue of the 
BLM flag was different and unique from other issues that are raised at board meetings, 
including the curriculum review response.  She expressed her support for the BLM flag. 

• Kristine Chartrand shared that the change to the schedule at U-32 feels incomplete, and will 
most likely impact teachers who have children in childcare.  She asked the board to consider 
the impact that the proposed changes in the schedule will have on families and staff.  She asked 
the board to potentially wait another year to give teachers and families’ time to prepare for 
these changes. 

• Holly Lane expressed concerns about the relationship between the Superintendent and some of 
the teachers.  She had sent an email to the board.   

• Meg Allison expressed concerns about the technology policies without the input of a district 
technology committee, and under the guidance of an interim technology director.  She stated 
that she has concerns about the process, and asked the board to pause on discussing and 
approving these policies to allow for more discussion with the committee and the new 
technology director. 

• Jessica Kobb expressed concern about the technology policies, especially around teachers not 
being allowed to use technology for personal matters while at school.  She stated that it feels 
like it is meant to be intimidating and does not feel like being treated as a professional. 

• Kyle Landis-Marinello had spoken about the curriculum review at a past meeting.  He 
expressed concerns that this is poorly timed, was not done well and did not take into account 
staff, teacher, community viewpoints.  He noted that the Superintendent had already provided 
his viewpoint to the Time Argus; he feels that the board needs to be open to the viewpoints of 
teachers, staff and community. 

• Adam Rosen encouraged the board to not accept the curriculum review as it took place during a 
pandemic.  He encouraged the board to limit the power of the Superintendent to terminate 
programs. Each school has unique characteristics and should be able to preserve them.  He 
suggested that the board mandate a committee approach to this.  He invited the board to 
consider the literacy curriculum review which was completed in the past. 

• Madeleine Dougherty spoke in solidarity for a forum to discuss the results from the curriculum 
review. 
Kari Bradley thanked those present for providing public feedback for the board’s consideration. 
 
 
 

39



 
 

3.3. Agenda Revisions 
 Kari Bradley noted that the board will go into Executive Session at the end of the meeting to 
address Superintendent Evaluation. Chris McVeigh, Chair of the Policy Committee, stated that 
the committee had decided to provide an extended invitation to the public to join the 
committee at its next meeting.  He will notify the public and invite their attendance and input 
to the committee. 

 
4. Reports  

4.1. Student Reports: (none) Kari Bradley congratulated Townes DeGroot on his graduation and 
thanked him for his work with the board. 

4.2. Superintendent  
4.2.1.Black Lives Matter Flag Raising Request: Superintendent Olkowski had prepared 

a memo for the board; he noted that he had checked with legal counsel and he stated that 
this request is appropriate and timely and within the guidelines of the policy. 

• Krista Dy, advisor for BLAMM, spoke to the board.   
• Latisha Montgomery spoke to the board on behalf of BLAMM. 
• Gabi Calderon spoke in favor of continuing to fly the BLM flag. 
• Meg Allison spoke to the board on behalf of some students at U-32, in favor of 

displaying the BLM flag. 
• Kari Bradley thanked them for their input and invited questions from board 

members.  No questions were heard. 
Superintendent Olkowski thanked the students for attending the meeting to advocate and 
provide comments around this issue. 
Scott Thompson moved to approve maintaining the flying of the BLM flag without 
interruption, understanding that there will be a re-raising ceremony in the fall of the 
upcoming school year.  Seconded by Jonas Eno-Van Fleet.  Diane Nichols-Fleming 
suggested an amendment to not require the board to reconsider this again next year.  Chris 
McVeigh suggested an amendment to note that the board’s vote is an expression of the 
board’s support of the Black Lives Matter movement.  Board members spoke about not 
adding the friendly amendment about reconsidering this next year.  Some expressed that it 
is useful to keep this issue at the forefront and address it every year; additionally, this 
would be consistent with the policy.  Diane Nichols-Fleming stated that she feels requiring 
the group to come before the board each year to ask again is not in the spirit of equity.   She 
stated that this is an onerous requirement for the student group. Jonas Eno-Van Fleet spoke 
in support of the spirit of Diane Nichols-Fleming’s sentiment but also feels that revisiting 
this every year as a board keeps this issue at the forefront.  Chris McVeigh explained the 
legal issue within the policy that the flag pole on the school grounds is not considered 
public speech but is considered representative of the board.  Stephen Looke reviewed the 
document / statement and requested that a symbol not be tied with the beliefs of board 
members (i.e. “The Black Lives Matter flag is a symbol of our commitment to do more as a 
school district.”)  He explained his rationale for not accepting things such as flags or lapel 
pins as symbols that are required to show commitment.  Scott Thompson spoke in response 
to an email that had been received, with the “All Lives Matter” sentiment.   He spoke about 
the treatment of a certain population of people as a litmus test; he stated that the BLM flag 
does not indicate that we are disregarding others.  Jonathan Goddard expressed his support 
of the BLM flag, and indicated his pride in having been on the board when this was first 
addressed.  He believes it is important for the board to remain consistent in their 
support.  Diane Nichols-Fleming reiterated that it is not the responsibility of “others” to 
educate, it is the responsibility of us to educate ourselves. 
This motion carried unanimously, with the amendment noting the board’s expression 
of support, but without the amendment to eliminate reconsideration year-by year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 40



 
 

4.2.2. Social Justice Statement: Superintendent Olkowski gave a brief overview of the 
work of the Social Justice group at WCUUSD, with the facilitation of Shelley Vermilya, 
Equity Scholar in Residence. He read the statement: “The Washington Central Unified 
Union School District is dedicated to taking concrete actions that provide a safer and 
more supportive learning environment that is free of barriers; one that affirms the 
identity of each of us and acknowledges and celebrates differences to create a sense of 
belonging for each person connected to our schools. The school district is committed to 
creating inclusive educational opportunities that are relevant both historically and 
culturally, addressing the impacts of bias, prejudice, and discrimination while building 
more opportunity for us to thrive rather than merely survive. This statement represents a 
commitment within our school district to acknowledge and end oppression and 
oppressive systems, to center our full humanity of all in our community, and to keep 
broadening our perspectives. These identities — including and not limited to race, color, 
religion, creed, national origin, ethnicity, marital status, family composition, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, varying physical and mental abilities, and socioeconomic 
status — carry socially constructed meaning and value. Our commitment is to the 
development of cultural humility and personal growth that is best supported in a climate 
that respects differences and provides a sense of belonging and inclusion.” 

     Scott Thompson moved to have the Policy Committee review this statement and 
consider putting this into policy form.  Seconded by Chris McVeigh.  Discussion:  Jill 
Olson stated that putting this sentiment into policy would create more of a living 
document.  Jonas Eno-Van Fleet asked what would be the reason to not adopt the 
statement tonight.  Scott Thompson stated that, because this is a statement from the 
board, we might want to change some of the language or approach to reflect the language 
of the board.  Jonas Eno-Van Fleet responded that he does not believe this statement 
needs any editing before the board adopts it; we have taken such action in the past 
without sending to the policy committee for vetting.  Stephen Looke indicated that he 
would like the board to have an opportunity to speak to this statement and discuss, before 
taking action on it.  Jonathan Goddard expressed his support for the motion or for the 
statement as it stands; however, if sending it to the committee and then to the board for 
action leads to concrete action within the schools, then he is in support.  Jonas Eno-Van 
Fleet agreed with Jonathan’s statement; he would like to ensure that this action does not 
indicate that the board does not support the sentiment in the statement. 
This motion carried unanimously. 

4.2.3.COVID -19 Update: Elizabeth Wirth had provided a memo to the board summarizing 
WCUUSD’s safety and effective functioning throughout the previous school year.  Board 
members thanked Elizabeth Wirth and the staff at the schools for their successful efforts 
around safety.  Jonas Eno-Van Fleet thanked Superintendent Olkwoski for his leadership 
in keeping students and staff safe through this pandemic. 

4.2.4.Curriculum Management Review Report: Superintendent Olkowski had provided 
the report to the board and asked the board to consider taking action to RECEIVE this 
document. The second action from the board would be to direct the Superintendent to 
provide a response to the report.  He stated that it is his intent to engage teachers, staff 
and community in consideration of this report. Scott Thompson moved that the board 
receive the report titled: CMSi Curriculum Review of WCUUSD.  Seconded by 
Dorothy Naylor.  Discussion:  Lindy Johnson asked why the board needed to take action 
to “receive” the document, as we already have it in our hands.  Superintendent Olkowski 
indicated that this is mostly a formality, to acknowledge that the board has in fact 
received the report that resulted from the curriculum review.  Stephen Looke indicated 
that this is action that the board has taken in the past.  This motion carried 
unanimously.   Diane Nichols-Fleming asked for more detail about the response, as 
indicated in the second motion.  To whom will the response go?  Why wouldn’t the 
Curriculum Director be involved in creating the response?     

 
 
 
 41



 
 

Superintendent Olkowski stated that the response would be to the board, and it would be 
one artifact of many in the strategic planning process going forward.  Lindy Johnson 
stated that she believes the motion should direct a committee, which includes the 
Curriculum Director and other staff, as well as the Superintendent.  Scott Thompson 
explained his understanding is that the board directs the Superintendent because he is the 
Administrator who is accountable to the board.  Superintendent Olkowski stated that he 
intends for this to be a collaborative process, but that he feels it is important that the 
response comes from him, as the board’s employee.  Chris McVeigh stated that he 
believes the  leadership team and teaching staff across the district should be included, as 
well as a committee that creates and attends community forums, at the front end of the 
process as opposed to the tail end of the process.  He believes the board can create the 
basic parameters about which individuals should be involved in creating the 
response.  Jonas Eno-Van Fleet asked how teachers will be engaged during the 
summer.  Superintendent Olkowski stated that he intends to create office hours 
throughout the summer to invite teachers and staff to meet with him in response to this 
document.   Kari Bradley stated that, as this is a lengthy document, he would like time to 
look it over before taking action directing the Superintendent’s response.  Chris McVeigh 
reiterated that this is indeed a lengthy document and he would like to not rush the 
response.  Jill Olson suggested that we take action to direct the Superintendent to develop 
a process by which the response to the report be created.  Board members expressed 
support for that idea.  Lindy Johnson stated that we have paid thousands of dollars for this 
review and there is of course an expectation that there will be a response. Stephen Looke 
moved to direct the Superintendent of schools to prepare a response to the 
Curriculum Review Report, to submit to the board at its October 2021 board 
meeting, identifying the areas needing attention, utilizing direct input from public 
forum, leadership team, and staff.  Seconded by Scott 
Thompson.  Discussion:  Jonathan Goddard suggested using “demonstrates” or 
“includes” versus “utilizes.”  Chris McVeigh indicated that he opposes this motion, as it is 
not specific enough about how public, leadership and staff will be included in the 
process.  He would like to insist on a committee process/ public forum process, and have 
a mechanism where those constituencies are included in the process before the resulting 
report is created.  Scott Thompson expressed his concerns that we are being too “micro” 
in our approach.  We could ask the Superintendent to report on the process that he has 
been following, so that we can consult or offer suggestions, in the course of regular board 
monitoring, on board agendas.  Jonas Eno-Van Fleet agreed with Scott Thompson’s 
statement that we may be getting too “micro.”   
A vote was called.   
No: 6 votes 
Yes: 5 votes  
This motion failed. 
Jonas Eno-Van Fleet moved to direct the Superintendent to present the board with a 
process for collecting public input, and input from stakeholders in the district that 
would lead to the preparation of a report including the following information:   
a) Prioritize the areas needing attention 
b) Identify which conditions most adversely affect students? 
c) Identify which findings most adversely affect the system? 
d) Develop a plan to address the recommendations, to be delivered by next regular 
board meeting (August 2021).  Seconded by Jill Olson.  This motion carried 
unanimously. 

4.2.5. School Time Proposal: Steven Dellinger-Pate shared that we have been considering 
extending the student school day for several years; transportation has been a barrier.  He 
had shared a proposal which allowed for extending the school day at U-32 by 20 
minutes.  He reviewed a June 20, 2021 memo explaining some of the specifics, including 
adding four buses to the end of day.  Jonas Eno-Van Fleet asked how the concerns with 
child care that had been expressed earlier would be addressed.  Principal Dellinger-Pate 
indicated that, if child care facilities are not fully open in the fall, then we will address 
this on a case by case basis.   
 42



     Chris McVeigh asked what within the teaching day will change in order to accommodate 
the additional twenty minutes.  He asked whether combining elementary age with middle/ 
high school age students on buses will be a certainty or a likelihood.  Principal Dellinger-
Pate stated that over the summer we will be asking families to “opt in” to bussing and get 
some specifics on bus routes and ridership.  He answered that teachers will be required to 
teach an additional twenty minutes, but this falls within the collective bargaining 
agreement.  Scott Thompson moved to approve spending  up to $241K for FY 21-22 
from the fund balance, for additional busses to extend the school day at U-32 from 8-
2:35 to 8-2:55.   Seconded by Chris McVeigh. Vera Frazier asked whether this proposal 
has the support of the leadership team at U-32.  Principal Dellinger-Pate indicated that it 
does.  Kari Bradley asked whether there has been feedback from families; Principal 
Dellinger-Pate stated that he has not heard feedback from families yet.  This motion 
carried unanimously. 

4.3.  Finance Committee 
4.3.1. Financial Update & ESSER Reports 
4.3.2. Food Service Financial Reports  
4.3.3. Comparative Information 

4.3.3.1. Education Spending Per Equalized Pupil 
4.3.3.2. Special Education Financial Information 
Lori Bibeau shared some of the highlights from the written reports that she had 
provided. Jonas Eno-Van Fleet moved to authorize reserving Fund Balance for the 
Doty .86 Para educator position for a cost of $31,368 less projected reimbursements of 
$17,566 for a net amount of $13,802. Seconded by Scott Thompson, this motion 
carried unanimously. Jonas Eno-Van fleet moved to authorize a transfer to the 
Capital Fund in the amount of $1,000,000.  Seconded by Scott Thompson, this motion 
carried unanimously. 
The board said goodbye, congratulations and thanks to Lori Bibeau, and welcomed 
Susanne Gann. Stephen Looke asked that the steering committee plan time for the board to 
consider the reports that Lori had prepared tonight, regarding per pupil spending and 
special education spending/ staffing. 

4.4. Policy Committee: Tabled 
4.4.1. Second Reading for policy to be adopted on 6.16.21: F44 Password Management, 

B8 Electronic Communication between Employees and Students, D40 Acceptable Use 
4.4.2.Third Reading for Policy to be Adopted: F40 Change Management, F43 Backups 

D3 District Take Home Device & Personal Device, F47 Electronic Mail, F48 Incident 
Response Policy and Plan  

5. Board Operations
5.1. Interviewing Potential New Board Members:

Ainsley Burroughs, Middlesex, spoke to the board about her interest in serving on the board. 
Chris Cadorette, Calais, spoke to the board about his interest in serving on the board. 
Maggie Weiss, Calais, spoke to the board about her interest in serving on the board. 
McKaylyn Leclerc, Worcester, spoke to the board about her interest in serving on the board. 
Ursula Stanley, Middlesex, spoke to the board about her interest in serving on the board. 
Patrick Whelley spoke to the board about his interest in serving on the board. 
Kari Bradley explained that the board will make a decision at the August board meeting. 

5.2. Governance (Action to Elect Vice Chair): Done earlier in the meeting  
5.3. Policy Committee Members:  Chris McVeigh explained that as Dorothy Naylor is leaving the 

board, the Policy Committee is seeking membership.  Scott Thompson offered to serve on the 
committee.  Lindy Johnson offered to serve on the committee as well. 
Jonas Eno-Van Fleet moved to appoint Scott Thompson to the Policy 
Committee.  Seconded by Chris McVeigh, this motion carried unanimously. 
Chris McVeigh moved to appoint Lindy Johnson to the Policy Committee.  Seconded by 
Jonas Eno-Van Fleet, this motion carried unanimously. Superintendent Olkowski indicated 
that at the August meeting we will need to consider committee members for a Transportation 
Committee. 

43



 
6. Consent Agenda:  

6.1. Approve Minutes of 5.19.21, 6.2.21, 6.8.21, and 6.16.21:  Jonas Eno-Van Fleet moved to 
approve the minutes of 5.19.21, 6.2.21, 6.8.21, and 6.16.21.  Seconded by Scott Thompson, 
this motion carried unanimously.  

6.2. Approve Board Orders:  Lindy Johnson moved to approve the board orders for a total 
amount of   $835,020.31.  Seconded by Scott Thompson, this motion carried unanimously. 
 

7. Personnel 
7.1. Approve New Teachers, Resignations, Retirements, Leave of Absence and Changes in 

FTE :Lindy Johnson moved to approve the hiring of Jeremy Avoli, U-32 Physical 
Education & Health Teacher.  Seconded by Chris McVeigh, this motion carried 
unanimously. Lindy Johnson moved to approve the hiring of Maxwell Segalla, U-32 
English Long Term Substitute. Seconded by Jonas Eno-Van Fleet, this motion carried 
unanimously. Scott Thompson moved to authorize Superintendent Olkowski to offer a 
letter of agreement to Lori Bibeau. Seconded by Chris McVeigh.  This motion 
carried.  Three board members were opposed. Scott Thompson moved to authorize the 
Superintendent to hire new personnel within the budget, as well as school counselors 
covered by the ESSER plan, between now and the next board meeting.  Seconded by 
Chris McVeigh.  Chris McVeigh asked how many positions are known at this time - 
Superintendent Olkowski indicated one or two at U-32 and one at Calais; as well as the school 
counselor positions.  Lisa LaPlante shared some of the plans to increase these positions across 
the district.  Jonas Eno-Van Fleet asked whether the board could plan a brief special meeting to 
approve hires.  In light of timing and sense of urgency, the board agreed that authorizing the 
Superintendent is appropriate.  Lindy Johnson asked whether the hiring process is the same as 
usual; Superintendent Olkowski indicated that it is.  Lisa LaPlante explained that positions 
funded by ESSER funds are one year assignments. 
This motion carried unanimously. 

7.2. Approval of New Bargaining Agreements:  Jonas Eno-Van Fleet thanked Carla, Lori, Lisa 
and Melissa, Kelly Bushey, and members from both of the unions, for their work and 
commitment and partnership in this process. Jonas Eno-Van Fleet moved to approve both 
the Teachers and ESP collective bargaining agreements as provided tonight, pending 
ratification by unions.  Seconded by Scott Thompson.  Discussion:  Scott Thompson had 
found a typo (“statue” versus “statute”) Diane Nichols-Fleming indicated that being able to 
reach a two year agreement is a cause for celebration.  This motion carried unanimously. 
 

8. Future Agenda Items 
8.1. WCUUSD Name  
8.2. Assessment Needs for Building Bright Futures 
8.3. Diversifying Educator Workforce 
8.4. Net Metering Proposal 
8.5. Strategic Planning 
8.6. Superintendent Report for Curriculum Review Process 
8.7. Exploration of Financial Reports as discussed  
8.8. Review of Social Justice Statement, Discussion of BLM, climate check-ins (regarding 

worries of prejudice and bias in buildings) 
8.9. Transportation Committee 
8.10. Mode of future meetings (remote/in person)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 44



 
 

9. Board Reflections 
Jill Olson:  Thank you, Kari - great job tonight filling in.  She noted that she got more out of public 
comment tonight, with the time frame that we had instituted.  She would like to continue with the 
time limit. 
Chris McVeigh:  would like to come up with a way to select members to comment when there are 
more raising hands than time allows - e.g. random selection.  He also asked whether there is a way 
to give people forewarning when their time is running out so they are not abruptly cut off (by 
microphone silencing). 
Jonas Eno-Van Fleet:  indicated that it worked well tonight. 
Diane Nichols-Fleming: stated that we will need to discuss as a board, the mode of future meetings 
(remote?  In person?) 
Stephen Looke:  Would like to discuss how to prioritize when there is great interest in public 
comment but the time limit does not allow.  Would like to prioritize community members having a 
voice, at board meetings. 
Scott Thompson:  said goodbye to Dorothy Naylor. 
Jonas Eno-Van Fleet:  important to say goodbye to those who are leaving the district, like Lori 
Bibeau, Kelly Bushey, Jody Emerson, etc.; thank them for their valuable contributions. 
 

10. Public Comments: None at this time (9:18 p.m.) 
Chris Cadorette from Calais thanked Dorothy for her service on the board. 
At 9:21 Scott Thompson moved to go into Executive Session for the purpose of discussing 
Superintendent Evaluation, and to include Carla Messier and Bryan Olkowski.  Seconded by 
Chris McVeigh, this motion carried unanimously. 
At 10:29 Scott Thompson moved to leave Executive Session. Seconded by Chris McVeigh, the 
motion carried unanimously. During Executive Session, the Board discussed Superintendent 
Evaluation. 
 

11. Adjourn:  
Diane Nichols-Fleming moved to adjourn. Scott Thompson seconded, motion carried 
unanimously.  Meeting adjourned at 10:31. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 
Lisa Stoudt, Board Recording Secretary 
and Jonas Eno-Van Fleet, Board Clerk 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
  
 
 

  
 

45



Washington Central Unified Union School District

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to their
local and global communities.

1130 Gallison Hill Road
Montpelier, VT  05602 Bryan Olkowski
Phone (802) 229-0553 Superintendent
Fax (802) 229-2761

Washington Central Unified Union School District
Special Board Meeting

7.26.21 8:00 AM – 9:00 AM

Board Members: Flor Diaz Smith, Chris McVeigh, Lindy Johnson, Scott Thompson, Diane
Nichols-Fleming, Jonas Eno-Van Fleet, Stephen Looke, Vera Frazier, Kari Bradley, Jill Olson,
Jonathan Goddard

Others: Scott Cameron, Melissa Tuller, Mark Kline

1. Call to Order:  Flor Diaz Smith called the meeting to order at 8:03 a.m.

2. Executive Session – Personnel: At 8:01, Flor Diaz-Smith asked the Board to consider
entering into executive session for the purpose of reviewing the employment status of an
employee, obtaining advice of legal counsel, and considering appropriate options.

Jonas Eno-Van Fleet moved that the Board finds that premature public knowledge of its
discussion concerning the employment status of an individual and the legal advice it
expects to receive relating thereto would clearly place the Board, the school district, and
the employee involved at a substantial disadvantage. Seconded by Chris McVeigh, this
motion carried unanimously.

Jonas Eno-Van Fleet moved that the Board enter into Executive Session for the purpose of
reviewing the employment status of an employee, obtaining advice of legal counsel, and
considering appropriate options. Seconded by Diane Nichols-Fleming, this motion carried
unanimously.

Scott Cameron joined the Board in Executive Session.

At 8:55, Jonas Eno-Van Fleet moved to leave Executive Session. Seconded by Chris
McVeigh, this motion carried unanimously.

During Executive Session the Board discussed personnel matters.

1
46



Jonas Eno-Van Fleet moved that the Board relieve Superintendent Bryan Olkowski of his
duties and responsibilities at this time and to place him in paid administrative leave status
for a period of up to thirty (30) calendar days beginning July 26, 2021, with the
understanding that the Board shall reassess Superintendent Olkowski’s status on or before
the conclusion of the thirty (30) day period. Seconded by Chris McVeigh, this motion
carried with one no vote from Scott Thompson.

Jonas Eno-Van Fleet moved that the Board designate Jennifer Miller-Arsenault to serve as
acting Superintendent while Superintendent Olkowski remains in paid administrative
leave status. Seconded by Diane Nichols-Fleming, this motion carried with one no vote
from Scott Thompson.

Jonas Eno-Van Fleet moved that the Board authorize its Chair to take all steps necessary
to advise Superintendent Olkowski of its decision and its expectations of him while he is in
paid administrative leave. Seconded by Lindy Johnson, this motion carried unanimously.

3. Adjourn: Jonas Eno-Van Fleet moved to adjourn at 8:58.  Seconded by Jill Olson, this
motion carried unanimously.

Respectfully submitted,
Jonas Eno-Van Fleet, WCUUSD Board Clerk

2
47



WCUUSD School Board  

Superintendent Personnel Summary and Recommendations 

August 11, 2021 

(as of August 11, 2021) 

1. New Teacher Nominations (for 21-22 school year)
Amadeus Dorfman - Special Education Teacher (WCUUSD)
Jake Ploof - School Counselor – U-32 (ESSER Funds)
Justin Liechty - School Counselor – Calais (ESSER Funds)
Amber Larrabee - School Nurse – U-32
Holly Taylor – Calais K/1 Teacher

2. Retirement

3. Resignations

4. Leave of Absence Request

5. Change in FTE
Mary Langevin – School Counselor - EMES- .4 FTE to 1.0 FTE (ESSER Funds)
Sharon Spector –School Counselor – Rumney – .6 FTE to .8 FTE (ESSER Funds)
Maureen McDermet- -School Counselor – Doty –.2 FTE to 1.0 FTE (ESSER Funds)
Michael Close –Rumney Music Teacher   0.1 addition to .4 FTE total
Samantha Mishkin – Rumney Music Teacher 0.4 addition to 1.0 FTE total

6. Long Term Substitutes  (21-22 School year )

7. New Hire –

48



49



50



51



Washington Central Unified Union School District 

Employee Nomination Form 

Name: 

School: Employer (if different): 

Position:     

Department/Area: 

Type:  Permanent  One-Year Non-Renewable  Temporary 

Contract:  Faculty  Educational Support Personnel  Non-Bargaining Unit 

Reason for vacancy:  Resignation/Retirement  Leave of Absence  New Position 

[If leave of absence or resignation, name of terminated employee: 

Educational Preparation: 
College Degree Date Attained 

Experience:     

__________________________________________________________________________________________________  

Years of Related Experience: 

Salary Schedule Placement: Start Date: 

Step 

Salary or Wage Rate: Date of Board Appointment: 

  $ 

FTE: Days / Year: Hours / Day: 

Interviewed by: 

This candidate is recommended for employment by:   Bryan Olkowski, Superintendent
cc: (check as appropriate): 

  PERSONNEL   PAYROLL   SPED   UNION   BUILDING PRINCIPAL 

52

cmessier
Typewritten Text

cmessier
Typewritten Text

cmessier
Typewritten Text



53



54



55



56



57



58


	8.10.21 Finance Committee Packet- Updated.pdf
	Finance Committee Agenda Aug 10
	6.22.21 Finance Committee Minutes Unapproved
	WCUUSD FY 21 Celebrations and Accomplishments (1)
	WCUUSD FY 21 Financial Update  for June 30 2021
	wcuusdfundbalancefy2021 June FINALpg 1
	wcuusdfundbalancefy2021 June FINAL page 2
	Food Service Reports August Board Packet
	WCUUSD Construction Capital Projects Update
	WCUUSD FY 21-22 Board Actions for August 11  2021
	VSBA Dues


	Name:          Maureen McDermet 
	School:     Doty
	Employer if different: WCUUSD
	Position: Counselor
	DepartmentArea: Guidance
	Permanent: Off
	Faculty: On
	OneYear NonRenewable: On
	Educational Support Personnel: Off
	ResignationRetirement: Off
	Leave of Absence: Off
	Temporary: Off
	NonBargaining Unit: Off
	New Position: Off
	If leave of absence or resignation name of terminated employee:   add .2 FTE/one year ESSER funded grant
	College 1: Current employee
	College 2: 
	Experience# 1:   
	Experience# 2: 
	Experience# 3: 
	Years of Related Experience:      
	Start Date: August 2021
	undefined: 69,911 (FY21)  
	Date of Board Appointment: 
	FTE:    now 1.0
	Days  Year:    190
	Hours  Day:    
	Interviewed by:  
	PERSONNEL: Off
	PAYROLL: Off
	SPED: Off
	UNION: Off
	BUILDING PRINCIPAL: Off


